# LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Linda M. Smrkovsky Member Barbara L. Reedy Chair John S. Sweetser Member

Wednesday, June 23, 2021 1:00 p.m. Special Meeting Luna County Courthouse

Meeting ID: meet.google.com/qdf-vbgk-pje Join by phone: 617-675-4444 PIN: 799 073 942 5674#

1. <u>Call to Order</u>: Chair Reedy to commence meeting (At this time, please silence your cell phones and any other electronic devices) Pledge of Allegiance, State Pledge

### 2. Roll Call:

3. **Public Comment:** The Public has the opportunity to provide comment at this time pertaining to items on the agenda only. Please be advised that this is not a question and answer period. Your comments specific to the agenda items will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests more information. The time limit and opportunity to speak is given in an effort to allow public input on business matters of the County to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet efficient manner. Comment will not be allowed on individual agenda items as they are discussed by the County Commissioners during new business.

## 4. <u>New Business:</u>

a. Resolution 21-48: Luna County Arterial Projects (CAP) Project MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

b. Resolution 21-49: Luna County Cooperative Agreement Projects (SP) Project MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

- c. Resolution 21-50: Luna County School Bus Routes (SB) Project
  - MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE
- d. Amended Resolution 21-03: Notice of Fees

MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

e. LEDA Request for Homegrown Produce LLC MOTION AND ROLL CALL VOTE

### 5. Adjourn:

# RESOLUTION # 21-48

### Luna County CAP Project

### PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the County of Luna and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a Cooperative Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be \$385,091.00 to be funded in proportional share by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation's share shall be 75% or \$288,818.00

And

b. Luna County's proportional matching share shall be 25% or \$96,273.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS \$385,091.00

Luna County shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of \$385,091.00.

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that Luna County determines, resolves, and orders as follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on December 31, 2022 and Luna County incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by Luna County to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control Number HW2 L100510 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2021 – 2022 to "Mill 10" existing chip seal, base and compact. Apply 3 lifts of chip seal to improve skid resistance, fog seal, and conform shoulders back to original condition, improve drainage, and apply safety striping and signage from Solana Rd SW from the intersection of Lucca Rd SW west 2 miles to Hermanas Rd SW, Lucca Rd SW to EOP" within the control of the Luna County in Deming, Luna County, New Mexico. Done at Deming, New Mexico this 23<sup>rd</sup> day of June, 2021. LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

**ATTEST:** 

Barbara L. Reedy, Chairperson Commissioner, District 1 Berenda McWright, County Clerk

Linda M. Smrkovsky, Commissioner, District 1

John S. Sweetser, Commissioner, District 3

Contract No.		
Vendor No.	0000054390	
Control No.	L100510	

## LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

**This Agreement** is between the **New Mexico Department of Transportation** (Department) and **Luna County** (Public Entity), collectively referred as the "parties." This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2, and State Transportation Commission Policy No. 44, the parties agree as follows:

#### 1. Purpose.

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity for the **design**, **pavement rehab/improvement**, **reconstruct and drainage improvements**, as described in Control No. **L100510**, and the Public Entity's resolution attached as **Exhibit C** (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. This Agreement specifies and delineates the rights and duties of the parties.

#### 2. Project Funding.

- a. For purpose stated above, the estimated total cost for the Project is **Three Hundred Eighty Five Thousand Ninety One Dollars and Zero Cents (\$385,091.00)** to be funded in proportional share by the parties as follows:
  - 1. Department's share shall be 75%: \$288,818.00 Design, pavement rehab/improvement, reconstruct and drainage improvements
  - 2. Public Entity's required proportional matching share shall be 25%: \$96,273.00
  - 3. Total Project Cost:

### \$385,091.00

- b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of Three Hundred Eighty Five Thousand Ninety One Dollars and Zero Cents (\$385,091.00).
- c. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

#### 3. The Department Shall:

Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph a1, to the Public Entity in a single lump sum payment after:

- a. Receipt of a cover letter requesting funds;
- b. Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed;
- c. Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity's local matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2; and
- d. All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

### 4. The Public Entity Shall:

- a. Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.
- b. Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District Engineer within thirty (30) calendar days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties.
- c. Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior to execution of this Agreement.
- d. Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
- e. Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules, regulations and ordinances.
- f. In accordance with project parameters, assume the lead planning and implementation role and sole responsibility for providing local matching funds; environmental, archaeological, utility clearances; railroad and Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) clearances; right-ofway acquisition; project development and design; and project construction and management.
- g. Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
- h. Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and private entities.
- i. Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity's costs for funding, labor, equipment and materials.
- j. Complete the project within eighteen (18) months of approval of funding by the State Transportation Commission.
- k. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, provide written certification that all work under this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road Fund projects, by submitting the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form,** which is attached as Exhibit A.
- 1. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should

reflect the total cost of project as stated in **Project Certification of Design, Construction,** and **Cost** form.

- m. Failure to provide the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost** form and an **AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities** report within thirty (30) calendar days of Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public Entity shall reimburse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this Agreement.
- n. Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or reconstructed under this Agreement.

## 5. Both Parties Agree:

- a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as directed by the Department.
- b. Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of project completion or expiration of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.
- c. This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.
- d. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted under this provision cannot be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under any other program.
- e. The provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any amendments.

### 6. Term.

This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement terminates on December 31, 2022. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

### 7. Termination.

- a. If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) calendar days written notice.
- b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this agreement.
- c. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the Public Entity.
- d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

## 8. Third Party Beneficiary.

It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

## 9. Liability.

As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, *et seq.*, and any other applicable law.

### **10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.**

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least \$1,000,000 per occurrence. The Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor's policy and a certificate of insurance and endorsements listing the Department as an additional insured must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act, error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the performance of the Project.

### 11. Scope of Agreement.

This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless included in this Agreement.

### 12. Terms of this Agreement.

The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

### 13. Legal Compliance.

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws, regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws governing civil rights, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issues, workplace safety, employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The Public Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract at all tiers.

### 14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age, disability, or other protected class, be excluded from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If the Public Entity is found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies, subject to Section 7 above.

### 15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and approved for expenditure.

### 16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement. The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days. If an audit finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of written notification.

### 17. Severability.

In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

### 18. Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G).

### 19. Amendment.

This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the parties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally left blank.

In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party's signature.

# NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:\_\_\_\_

Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Office of General Counsel

By:\_\_\_

Assistant General Counsel

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

**LUNA COUNTY** 

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Title: \_\_\_\_\_

Attest: \_\_\_\_\_\_ County Clerk or Designee

# EXHIBIT A PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

ΤC	D: New Mexico Department of Transportation District LGRF Coordinator		
Co Jo:	ooperative Agreement No		
En	tity:		
Sc	ope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):		
-			
I, 1	he undersigned, in my capacity as	of	state that:
	The design is in compliance with all state laws, rule performed in accordance with the provisions set <u>Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Curre</u> Construction of the project was performed in according forth in:	forth in this Agreement Edition);	ent and in the Local
	and completed on, 20	; and	
3.	That the total project cost of Transportation 75% share of (as submitted in a Quantities") is accurate, legitimate, and appropria	and the Pub attached "As Built Sur	lexico Department of lic Entity share of nmary of Costs and
	Name	Date	
	Print Name		

Title

### EXHIBIT B

# AS BUILT SUMMARY OF COSTS AND QUANTITIES

### CONTRACT

ENTITY:	 No.:	 CN:	
PROJECT No.:			
TERMINI:	 	 	
SCOPE OF WORK:			

ITEM	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT	ESTIMATED	FINAL	UNIT	FINAL
NO.			QUANTITY	QUANTITY	COST	COST
			-			
					_	
						1
					_	
						_
						1
					1	1

LGRF Agreement Rev 5/2021

# RESOLUTION # 21-49

### Luna County SP Project

# PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the County of Luna and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a Cooperative Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be \$78,667.00 to be funded in proportional share by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation's share shall be 75% or \$59,000.00

And

b. Luna County's proportional matching share shall be 25% or \$19,667.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS \$78,667.00

Luna County shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of \$78,667.00.

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that Luna County determines, resolves, and orders as follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on December 31, 2022 and Luna County incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the Luna County to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control Number HW2 L100501 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2021–2022 to "Apply micro-surfacing, fill cracks/potholes to improve skid resistance, conform shoulders back to original condition, improve drainage, and safety striping and signage, Sunshine Rd SE from the intersection of McCan Rd SE west 2 miles to Hwy 11, 4th St from the intersection of San Luis Dr east 1.5 miles to EOP" within the control of the Luna County in Deming, Luna County, New Mexico. Done at Deming, New Mexico this 23<sup>rd</sup> day of June, 2021. LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

**ATTEST:** 

Barbara L. Reedy, Chairperson Commissioner, District 1 Berenda McWright, County Clerk

Linda M. Smrkovsky, Commissioner, District 1

John S. Sweetser, Commissioner, District 3

### LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

**This Agreement** is between the **New Mexico Department of Transportation** (Department) and **Luna County** (Public Entity), collectively referred as the "parties." This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2, and State Transportation Commission Policy No. 44, the parties agree as follows:

#### 1. Purpose.

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity for the **design**, **pavement rehab/improvement**, **reconstruction and drainage improvements of county roads**, as described in Control No. L100501, and the Public Entity's resolution attached as **Exhibit C** (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. This Agreement specifies and delineates the rights and duties of the parties.

#### 2. Project Funding.

- a. For purpose stated above, the estimated total cost for the Project is Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Sixty Seven Dollars and Zero Cents (\$78,667.00) to be funded in proportional share by the parties as follows:
  - 1. Department's share shall be 75%:
     \$59,000.00

     Project Development, Survey, Design, and Construction of Roadway and Drainage Improvements
  - 2. Public Entity's required proportional matching share shall be 25%: \$19,667.00
  - 3. Total Project Cost:

# \$78,667.00

- b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of Seventy Eight Thousand Six Hundred Sixty Seven Dollars and Zero Cents (\$78,667.00).
- c. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

LGRF Agreement Rev 5/2021

# 3. The Department Shall:

Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph a1, to the Public Entity in a single lump sum payment after:

- a. Receipt of a cover letter requesting funds;
- b. Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed;
- c. Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity's local matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2; and
- d. All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

# 4. The Public Entity Shall:

- a. Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.
- b. Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District Engineer within thirty (30) calendar days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties.
- c. Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior to execution of this Agreement.
- d. Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
- e. Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules, regulations and ordinances.
- f. In accordance with project parameters, assume the lead planning and implementation role and sole responsibility for providing local matching funds; environmental, archaeological, utility clearances; railroad and Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) clearances; right-ofway acquisition; project development and design; and project construction and management.
- g. Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
- h. Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and private entities.
- i. Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity's costs for funding, labor, equipment and materials.
- j. Complete the project within eighteen (18) months of approval of funding by the State Transportation Commission.
- k. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, provide written certification that all work under this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road Fund projects, by submitting the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form,** which is attached as Exhibit A.

- 1. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should reflect the total cost of project as stated in Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form.
- m. Failure to provide the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost** form and an **AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities** report within thirty (30) calendar days of Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public Entity shall reimburse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this Agreement.
- n. Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or reconstructed under this Agreement.

### 5. Both Parties Agree:

- a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as directed by the Department.
- b. Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of project completion or expiration of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.
- c. This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.
- d. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted under this provision cannot be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under any other program.
- e. The provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any amendments.

## 6. Term.

This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement terminates on December 31, 2022. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

## 7. Termination.

- a. If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) calendar days written notice.
- b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this agreement.
- c. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the Public Entity.
- d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

# 8. Third Party Beneficiary.

It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

# 9. Liability.

As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, *et seq.*, and any other applicable law.

## 10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least \$1,000,000 per occurrence. The Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor's policy and a certificate of insurance and endorsements listing the Department as an additional insured must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act, error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the performance of the Project.

## **11. Scope of Agreement.**

This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless included in this Agreement.

## 12. Terms of this Agreement.

The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

## 13. Legal Compliance.

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws, regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws governing civil rights, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issues, workplace safety, employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The Public

Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract at all tiers.

#### 14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age, disability, or other protected class, be excluded from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If the Public Entity is found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies, subject to Section 7 above.

#### 15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and approved for expenditure.

#### 16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement. The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days. If an audit finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of written notification.

#### 17. Severability.

In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

#### 18. Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G).

#### 19. Amendment.

This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the parties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally left blank.

In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party's signature.

# NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:\_\_\_\_

Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Office of General Counsel

By:\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Assistant General Counsel

**LUNA COUNTY** 

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Title:\_\_\_\_\_\_

Attest: \_\_\_\_\_ County Clerk or Designee

### EXHIBIT A PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

ТО	New Mexico Department of Transportation District LGRF Coordinator		
Co Joi	operative Agreement No	Control No Control No	
Ent	tity:		
Sco	ope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):		
_			
I, tl	he undersigned, in my capacity as	of	state that:
1.	The design is in compliance with all state laws, rule performed in accordance with the provisions set <u>Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Curre</u>	forth in this Agreeme	
2.	Construction of the project was performed in acco forth in:	rdance with standards a	and specifications set
	and completed on, 20	; and	
3.	That the total project cost of Transportation 75% share of Quantities") is accurate, legitimate, and appropria	and the Put attached "As Built Su	olic Entity share of
	Name	Date	
	Print Name		

Title

### EXHIBIT B

# AS BUILT SUMMARY OF COSTS AND QUANTITIES

### CONTRACT

ENTITY:	 No.:	 CN:	1
PROJECT No.:			
TERMINI:	 		
SCOPE OF WORK:		 	

ITEM	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT	ESTIMATED	FINAL	UNIT	FINAL
NO.			QUANTITY	QUANTITY	COST	COST
	1					
				·		
		·				
1						
	1					

LGRF Agreement Rev 5/2021

# RESOLUTION # 21-50

### Luna County SB Project

# PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the County of Luna and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a Cooperative Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be \$160,000.00 to be funded in proportional share by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation's share shall be 75% or \$120,000.00

And

b. Luna County's proportional matching share shall be 25% or \$40,000.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS \$160,000.00

Luna County shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of \$160,000.00.

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that Luna County determines, resolves, and orders as follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on December 31, 2022 and Luna County incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by Luna County to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control Number HW2 L100515 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2021 – 2022 to "Mill 10" existing chip seal, base and compact. Apply 3 lifts of chip seal to improve skid resistance, fog seal, and conform shoulders back to original condition, improve drainage, and apply safety striping and signage from McCan Rd SE from the edge of the city limits ½ mile north of Solana Rd SE south 6.5 miles to Sunshine Rd SE, Skyview Rd SW from the intersection of NM 418 and Dona Ana Rd SW north 1.5 miles to EOP" within the control of the Luna County in Deming, Luna County, New Mexico. Done at Deming, New Mexico this 23<sup>rd</sup> day of June, 2021. LUNA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

**ATTEST:** 

Barbara L. Reedy, Chairperson Commissioner, District 1 Berenda McWright, County Clerk

Linda M. Smrkovsky, Commissioner, District 1

John S. Sweetser, Commissioner, District 3

Contract No.		
Vendor No.	0000054390	
Control No.	L100515	

### LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

**This Agreement** is between the **New Mexico Department of Transportation** (Department) and **Luna County** (Public Entity), collectively referred as the "parties." This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2, and State Transportation Commission Policy No. 44, the parties agree as follows:

#### 1. Purpose.

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity for the **Design, pavement rehab/improvement, reconstruction and drainage improvements**, as described in Control No. L100515, and the Public Entity's resolution attached as **Exhibit C** (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. This Agreement specifies and delineates the rights and duties of the parties.

### 2. Project Funding.

- a. For purpose stated above, the estimated total cost for the Project is **One Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents (\$160,000.00)** to be funded in proportional share by the parties as follows:
  - 1. Department's share shall be 75%:
     \$120,000.00

     Design, pavement rehab/improvement, reconstruction and drainage improvements
     and drainage
  - 2. Public Entity's required proportional matching share shall be 25%: \$40,000.00
  - 3. Total Project Cost:

#### \$160,000.00

- b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of **One Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents (\$160,000.00)**.
- c. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

LGRF Agreement Rev 5/2021

### 3. The Department Shall:

Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph a1, to the Public Entity in a single lump sum payment after:

- a. Receipt of a cover letter requesting funds;
- b. Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed;
- c. Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity's local matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2; and
- d. All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

## 4. The Public Entity Shall:

- a. Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.
- b. Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District Engineer within thirty (30) calendar days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties.
- c. Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior to execution of this Agreement.
- d. Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
- e. Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules, regulations and ordinances.
- f. In accordance with project parameters, assume the lead planning and implementation role and sole responsibility for providing local matching funds; environmental, archaeological, utility clearances; railroad and Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) clearances; right-ofway acquisition; project development and design; and project construction and management.
- g. Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
- h. Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and private entities.
- i. Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity's costs for funding, labor, equipment and materials.
- j. Complete the project within eighteen (18) months of approval of funding by the State Transportation Commission.
- k. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, provide written certification that all work under this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road Fund projects, by submitting the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form,** which is attached as Exhibit A.

- 1. Within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should reflect the total cost of project as stated in Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form.
- m. Failure to provide the **Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost** form and an **AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities** report within thirty (30) calendar days of Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public Entity shall reimburse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this Agreement.
- n. Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or reconstructed under this Agreement.

# 5. Both Parties Agree:

- a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as directed by the Department.
- b. Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of project completion or expiration of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.
- c. This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.
- d. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted under this provision cannot be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under any other program.
- e. The provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any amendments.

# 6. Term.

This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement terminates on December 31, 2022. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

## 7. Termination.

- a. If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) calendar days written notice.
- b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this agreement.
- c. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the Public Entity.
- d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

# 8. Third Party Beneficiary.

It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

# 9. Liability.

As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party's acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, *et seq.*, and any other applicable law.

## 10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least \$1,000,000 per occurrence. The Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor's policy and a certificate of insurance and endorsements listing the Department as an additional insured must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney's fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act, error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the performance of the Project.

## 11. Scope of Agreement.

This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless included in this Agreement.

## 12. Terms of this Agreement.

The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

# 13. Legal Compliance.

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws, regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws governing civil rights, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issues, workplace safety, employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The Public

Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract at all tiers.

#### 14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age, disability, or other protected class, be excluded from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement. If the Public Entity is found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies, subject to Section 7 above.

#### 15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and approved for expenditure.

#### 16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement. The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days. If an audit finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) calendar days of written notification.

#### 17. Severability.

In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

#### 18. Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G).

### 19. Amendment.

This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the parties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally left blank.

In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party's signature.

# NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

\_\_\_\_\_

By:\_\_\_

Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Date:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation's Office of General Counsel

By:\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Assistant General Counsel

**LUNA COUNTY** 

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Title: \_\_\_\_\_\_

Attest: County Clerk or Designee

# EXHIBIT A PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

TC	D: New Mexico Department of Transportation District LGRF Coordinator		
Co Joi	ooperative Agreement No	Control No Control No	
En	tity:		
Sc	ope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):		
-	he undersigned, in my capacity as		
	The design is in compliance with all state laws, ruperformed in accordance with the provisions see Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Curr Construction of the project was performed in according to the project was performed to the performed to the performance with the project was performed to the performance with the project was performed to the performance was performed to the per	et forth in this Agreeme ent Edition);	nt and in the <u>Local</u>
	forth in:		
	and completed on, 20_	; and	
3.	That the total project cost of Transportation 75% share of (as submitted in Quantities") is accurate, legitimate, and appropria	attached "As Built Sun	exico Department of lic Entity share of mary of Costs and
	Name	Date	
	Print Name		

Title

# EXHIBIT B

# AS BUILT SUMMARY OF COSTS AND QUANTITIES

### CONTRACT

ENTITY:	 No.:	 CN:	
PROJECT No.:			
TERMINI:	 		
SCOPE OF WORK:	 		

ITEM	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT	ESTIMATED	FINAL	UNIT	FINAL
NO.			QUANTITY	QUANTITY	COST	COST
						1
					_	
					_	1
					_	-

LGRF Agreement Rev 5/2021

Be it remembered that at a Special meeting of the Luna County Board of County Commissioners in Deming New Mexico, on the 23 day of June 2021, the following proceedings were had and entered of record.

# **AMENDED RESOLUTION #21-03**

### **NOTICE OF FEES**

WHEREAS, the Luna County Board of County Commissioners find it necessary to implement certain fees pertaining to copying, recording, business registrations, transactions within the Treasurer's Office, building permit fees, manufactured home/mobile home installation permit fees, and plan review fees, rural addressing service fees; and

**NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED** that the Luna County Board of County Commissioners has determined that the above-mentioned fees be charged as followed:

## **General Fees:**

1.	Copies of documents, single sided, black and white or electronic: Letter size, $(8 \ 1/2'' \ x \ 11'')$ , legal size, $(8'' \ 1/2 \ x \ 14'')$ , or tabloid size, $(11'' \ x \ 17'')$ Color Copies	\$0.50 \$1.00
2.	Above tabloid size (11" x 17") up to three (3') feet by four (4') feet Black and white paper map size: Color Print:	\$10.00 \$20.00
3.	Above three (3') feet by four (4') feet up to six (6') feet Black and white paper map: Color Print:	\$25.00 \$35.00
4.	CD's:	\$5.00
5.	USB Flash Drive Each Additional Layer of GIS Data	\$25.00 \$5.00

Requests for Specialty Maps, Data, or Data Sheets shall be detailed in writing to the Office of the County Planner for pricing, which will vary depending on complexity and density of layered information, data type, media type, and production time.

# **Recording Fees:**

Documents recorded in the office of the County Clerk are public records, subject to inspection and disclosure.

Recording fees are established pursuant to Section 14-8-13 through 17, et seq., NMSA,1978. Unless otherwise specified by law, the county clerk shall collect a recording fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each document filed or recorded by the county clerk. If the document being filed or recorded contains more than ten entries to the county recording index, the county clerk shall collect an additional fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each additional block of ten or fewer entries to the county recording index from the document. For each fee of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) collected by the county clerk, eighteen dollars (\$18.00) shall be deposited in the county general fund and seven dollars (\$7.00) shall be deposited in the county clerk recording and filing fund.

Amounts collected from the equipment recording fee shall be deposited into a restricted account to be used as authorized by Section 14-8-12.2, NMSA, 1978.

## **Business Registration Fees:**

The annual business registration fee is \$25.00 pursuant to Ordinance No. 5 as Amended.

All licensed locations or premises in Luna County, outside the corporate limits of the City of Deming and the village limits of the Village of Columbus, beginning June 1 each year for the ensuing year, shall pay the following license tax:

(1)	Dispenser's License (Bar and Winery)	\$200.00
(2)	Retailer's License (Package Store)	\$100.00
(3)	Club License	\$ 50.00

This fee is due and payable to the County Clerk's Office at the time each business registration is issued on July 1.

## Fees for Transactions within Treasurer's Department:

## Return payment checks for correct amount \$5.00

This fee will partially cover the cost of returning advalorem tax payment checks that are unsigned or are for an incorrect amount.

## **Return item (NSF) charges**

\$30.00

This fee will not be less than current bank charges. This charge will cover the processing cost of the return items.

# Cost to Luna County-Personal Property (Mobile Home) Sale

The administration and enforcement of delinquent personal property ad valorem taxes is authorized by Sections 7-38-51 through 56, NMSA 1978.

The delinquent personal property tax sale is authorized by Sections 7-38-57, 58, 59, NMSA 1867.

The County Treasurer is authorized to recover any cost incurred in preparing for the sale. To cover all additional costs of preparing for the personal property tax sale, the Luna County Treasurer hereby imposes the following fees:

- (1) **Delinquent personal property letter service fee \$10.00** This charge would be for all accounts that are delinquents more than 60 days.
- (2) <u>Demand Warrant Processing Fee</u> **\$25.00** This charge would be for all accounts that are delinquent over 180 days.
- (3) <u>Penalty and Interest</u> The P & I charge on accounts that are more than 180 days delinquent will be retained by Luna County to defray the cost of the personal property tax sales.

# **Building Permit Fees:**

Manufactured Home/Mobile Home Installation Permit (MHIP) fee: \$50.00

Building Permit Value	Permit Fee	
\$2,000 and less		\$30.00
\$2,001.00 to \$3,000.00		\$30.00 + \$5.00 per \$500.00
		increment in value over \$ 1,001.00
\$3,001.00 and over		\$40.00 + \$1.75 per \$1,000.00
		increment in value
Missed Inspections		\$20/Per Scheduled Appointment
Unpermitted Construction	up to	\$150.00
Unpermitted Mobile Home	up to	\$100.00
Demolition Permit	up to	\$100.00
\$3,001.00 and over Missed Inspections Unpermitted Construction Unpermitted Mobile Home	up to	increment in value over \$ 1,001.00 \$40.00 + \$1.75 per \$1,000.00 increment in value \$20/Per Scheduled Appointment \$150.00 \$100.00

Plan review fee is waived for standard residential construction projects. Complex residential and all Commercial construction project plan reviews will be +20% of permit fee.

Failure to obtain an approved building permit prior to beginning construction will result in the immediate discontinuance of further work on the project and shall be required to pay double the normal permit fee before a permit is issued.

<b>Rural Addressing Service Fee (new residents):</b>					
	Administrative processing	\$25.00			
LCDC Depar	rtment Fees:				
Bond Fee Notary Fee				\$10.00 \$1.00	
<b>DWI Progra</b>	m Fees:				
Screening Fee Treatment Fee Compliance F	e		1	\$100.00 one time fee \$240.00 \$50.00/monthly	
<u>Sheriff's Dep</u>	artment Fees:				
Civil Process Report Fee VIN Inspectio	Fee/address/person			\$40.00 \$.50/page \$35.00	
<u>Domestic Vio</u>	lence Shelter Fees:				
Batterer Inte	ervention Program—				
Assessment Fe Program Fee Workbook Re	ee placement Fee			\$50.00 \$200.00 \$20.00	

### **Road Department Fees:**

Tire Disposal Fees \$1.10/passenger \$5.00/truck \$10.00/tractor Utility Easement Application Fee \$200.00 \$.10/ft(12x36) or \$.15/ ft (24x48 Trenching \$150 (<90') + \$1.50/ft thereafter Aerial Service Hook up \$50 w/no pavement cut \$100 w/ pavement cut Meter Replacement \$0 Maintenance 100(<250') then trenching app Permit fees above apply \$200.00 **Reinstatement Fees** \$50.00 **Appeal Fees Planning Fees:** 

**Appeals to County Commission** \$50.00 Variance \$100.00 per variance **Conditional/Special Use Not Yet Determined Mobile Home Moving Permit** No Charge **Mobile Home Installation Permit** \$50 **Floodplain Review** \$15 **Floodplain Permit** \$35 (When required by the Floodplain Manager, the applicant must submit an elevation certificate by a registered land surveyor)

> Schedule of Administrative Fees for Administering the Luna County Subdivision Ordinance

Summary Review Application	\$100.00 or \$10.00 per lot
Preliminary Plat Application	\$200.00 or \$15.00 per lot
RE-submittal of revised or Corrected plat application	\$100.00
Final Plat Application	\$100.00 or \$25.00 per lot
Replat	(Same as preliminary and final plat)
Vacation of Plat (Including partial vacation)	\$75.00
Vacation of Easement	\$50.00

**Claim of Exemption** 

Where additional review by the County is required above and beyond normal review

requirements due to complex, unforeseen, or unique circumstances relating to the proposed plan or plat, then the County may charge additional fees to defray the cost of such reviews.

**NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT,** this resolution shall be reviewed periodically to determine if revisions are necessary.

Done at Deming, New Mexico this 23 day of June 2021

Luna County Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Reedy, Commissioner, District 1 Berenda McWright, County Clerk

Linda M. Smrkovsky, Commissioner, District 2

John S. Sweetser, Commissioner, District 3 \$25.00